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ALL RFP RESPONSES NEED TO HAVE THE FOLLOWING SIGNED ACKNOWLEDGEMENT.

On behalf of [INSERT VENDOR NAME HERE], I [PRINT ACKNOWLEDGE NAME HERE], sign to acknowledge that the vendor stated above has received, reviewed and responded to the RFP and any posted addendums with this proposal.

_X______________________________________________

1. Should the RFP cover page show Proposals Due by: Thursday, November 17, 2016 (4:00 PM CT)?  
Answer: The city discourages editing any portion of the proposal aside from sections where a response is required.
2. The proposal response layout desired appears to be different in two sections (both say arranged in consecutive order).  Which arrangement should we follow in our response?
P 1 & 2, Proposal Format 4.1 – 4.7 < OR > Attachment C, p 26-28  
Answer: Use the format specified in Attachment C, p 26-28.  All concepts listed on P1&2 need to be clearly addressed.
3. P 27, 2.1 This paragraph contains language referring to the processing of comingled recyclable materials in the first sentence and regulators in the last sentence.  Should this be changed to fit the RFP theme?
Answer: 
2.1 Previous Similar Experience
This section should clearly identify similar projects/contracts involving the Vendor, highlighting experience in AMI system implementations sorting and processing commingled recyclable materials. A brief description of up to three (3) similar projects shall be provided, including the history of operation, current status, and a description of the Vendor’s specific involvement in these projects. References from at least three (3) projects or relevant sources such as a regulator should be provided with appropriate contact information.
4. P 44 in the description to Reference #, what does the following mean?  “See appendices for detail requirements that were summarized to this internal cross-reference number” We are not finding any appendices.  
Answer: Disregard “See appendices for detail requirements that were summarized to this internal cross-reference number.”  
5. Does the City intend to issue a bid for procurement of water meters in additional to this RFP?  If so, what additional details of this are available?   Quantities, effective dates, etc.
Answer: Meters will be bid separately from this RFP.
6. Will cellular technology or a mix of cellular and Fixed Network technology be considered? 
Answer: Yes
7. Is the City looking for a migratable endpoint?
Answer: No, the endpoint is expected to be used with the AMI system immediately. AMR to AMI migration is not required.  

8. RFP Page 16 Section 2.2:  The “Proof-of-Concept Phase” is scheduled for 12 months.
a. Are there various locations within the City’s system where the “Proof-of-Concept Phase” will be run?
i. If so, what are those locations and number of meters to be installed per City location?
ii. What is the expected completion/duration for the meter/register/endpoint installation?
iii. What are the designated infrastructure locations?
Answer: The “Proof of Concept” size and location will be determined during project planning sessions at the beginning of the project.  This project, including the installation of 17,000 meters/endpoints is expected to be completed by March 2020.  The infrastructure locations will be initially proposed by the propagation study if included with the proposal, and determined ultimately by cooperative planning between the vendor and the City. 
9. RFP Page 17 Section 2.3:  The “Production Phase” appears to be scheduled for 18 months.
a. It is assumed the remaining meters/registers/endpoints from the initial 17,000 will be installed during the “Production Phase.”
i. What are the locations and number of meters to be installed per City location?
Answer: The remaining meters/registers/endpoints will be installed during the “Production Phase” of the project. The exact locations of the 17,000 meters will be provided will be established in discovery sessions at the beginning of the project.  They will be primarily residential installations in close proximity to each other. 
10. RFP Page 22 Section 15.1:  “The City will provide the Vendor will all meters and meter registers on a consignment basis.”
a. Will the City warehouse the meters and registers used for the project? 
Answer:  This option available for discussion.
b. Will the City supply washers and connection sets (as needed)? 
Answer:  No.  
c. Will the City warehouse and consign endpoints to the Vendor for installation? 
Answer:  This option available for discussion.
d. If fixed base meter reading infrastructure is required for the project, will the City warehouse and consign the fixed base infrastructure to the Vendor for installation? 
Answer:  No.
e. What are the hours of operation for the City’s warehouse location? 
Answer:  8:00am-3:00pm.
11. RFP Page 23 Section 15.5:  The Vendor shall provide integration into EnQuesta to allow Customer Service representatives to have access to appointment and installation notes.
a. What is the EnQuesta file format for this integration process?
Answer: The technical details of the file format will be established in discovery sessions at the beginning of the project. 
12. Will meter/register/endpoint lat/longs need to be gathered outside/in front of a property location?
a. If so, are these to be standard or sub-meter lat/longs?
Answer: Yes, standard lat/longs.  Sub-meters to be addressed by City.

13. Will there be two installation mobilizations required between the “Proof-of-Concept Phase” and the “Production Phase”?
Answer: Yes.   
14. What are the City mandated work days and work hours for the project?
a. Can installation work be done after hours to meet City customer needs?
Answer: 6am -3:30pm is the City’s normal time to access customer locations.  Vendor time outside of these normal hours open to discussion.
15. What are the City mandated holidays 2017 – 2020?
Answer: 
New Year’s day
Martin Luther King Day
President’s Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Indigenous People (Columbus Day)
Veteran’s Day
Thanksgiving (Plus Friday after)
Christmas
16. How many attempts must be made before a City account is turned back to the City?
Answer: 2. Note date, time, and style of attempts, and reason (if any) that the account was inaccessible.  It’s expected that the vendor leave at least 1 multi-lingual letter.
17. Is “door knocking” permitted?
Answer: No.
18. Can “door knock tags” be left on the customer doors?
Answer: Yes.  Tags must be multi-lingual to conform with City standards.
19. What is the City’s proposed process for RTU’s regarding poor plumbing, difficult installations, no responses, etc.?
Answer: Communication with the City.  Vendor needs to keep record of before, during, after of all installations.  See response to 20 for non-responsive customers.
20. If additional work is required such as valve replacements, how should this be communicated to the City?
Answer:  Phone call to City Project Manager.  Vendor needs confirmation from City prior to doing the work.
21. Is pipe freezing permitted?
Answer: No.  Return site to City’s responsibility.
22. Can the installer shutdown the curb stop if needed?
Answer: No.  Return site to City’s responsibility.
23. Will the City be supplying miscellaneous parts such as 5/8” and 3/4” valves?
Answer: Not for vendor to install.  Return site to City’s responsibility.
24. Do all current indoor meter installations have grounding straps?
Answer: All indoor meters should have grounding straps, but not all of them do.



25. Will all 5/8” and 3/4" meter installation be “like-for-like” in size and lay length?
Answer: Yes.  If a customer requests a different size, a Meter Set Permit needs to be taken out through Water Permits and Connections and the meter installation will be returned to the City’s responsibility.
26. Are the current City customer meters in setters or straight pipe?
Answer: Straight pipe.  Meter setters have never been required or desired, but there may be a few installed.
27. What is the current service line material?
a. Copper
b. Lead
c. Plastic
d. PEX
e. Galvanized
Answer: The majority are copper service lines.  There are quite a few galvanized service lines remaining in service.
28. Do any City accounts that will be changed out have “deduct meters” as well that will need to be changed out?
Answer: No. 
29. Are there any meters located outdoor in meter pits/vaults?
a. If so are the clearly marked?
Answer: No. 
30. Will the City supply any type of office/warehouse space for the Vendor?
Answer: No. 
31. Will any federal, state, local and/or municipal licenses, permits and/or fees be required for the installation of meters, endpoints and gateways?
Answer: Yes.  Please visit www.dli.mn.gov.
32. Who will be the City’s point of contact for installation related questions for both meter and infrastructure installation?
Answer: There will be a Construction Project Manager for the City as a single point of contact for the vendor.  The City would expect a single point of contact from the vendor as well.
33. Does this project fall under the state of Minnesota prevailing wage umbrella?
a. If so, what are the job classifications and labor rates that would apply for:
i. Meter installations with AMR
ii. Infrastructure installation
Answer: Yes.  Please see http://www.dli.mn.gov/ls/prevwage.asp
34. Can gateway infrastructure be installed on City street light poles and traffic signals?
Answer: Vendors should propose their solution and the City will do what they can to make those locations available.
35. Are City street lights powered 24 hours a day?  If so, at what voltage?
Answer: 120V 
36. Can poles be installed where required on City property?  If so, are there a height restrictions or pole material restrictions?  Will the City assist in bringing City power to pole locations?
Answer: Vendor should propose solution for City to review.  Height of existing poles not available.  The City will not be responsible for supplying power at pole locations. 
37. Are there City owned locations where LAN gateways can be installed
Answer: Yes.  The LAN devices would need to be cleared for use by the IT Infrastructure team and ports (both data jacks and corresponding switch ports) would need to be identified and configured to accommodate the LAN gateways.  Vendor shall specify device specifications and intended service.
38. Per the RFP, there is an eight-year buildout for the meter reading infrastructure.  Is there a specific timeframe that the contractor needs to respond to requests for additional infrastructure installations?
Answer: The meter reading infrastructure will need to be completed in the first two (2) years of the project. Eight (8) years is the length of the City’s plan to replace all of the meters and endpoints and be completely converted to AMI.  
39. Page 28 – item 3 Company Financial Information refers to Performance and Payment bonds in RFP section VIII.  The RFP package we received does not contain the above mention RFP Section.
Answer: Please disregard this portion of Attachment C Part 3. “At a minimum, the Vendor shall provide written proof stating that the Vendor is financially responsible and capable of being bonded for an annual amount of $180,000 per bond. Performance and Payment Bond requirements are provided in the RFP Section VIII “PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND”.”
40. Should the RFP cover page show Proposals Due by: Thursday, November 17, 2016 (4:00 PM CT)?
Answer: Yes. Leave the document as-is except places where you are required to respond.
41. Provide more information on the purpose of the shutoff valve.
Answer: The purpose of the remote shutoff valve is to allow the City to restrict water to a customer’s home through the AMI system without having to send a technician out to perform that task. Proposers must specify a remote shutoff valve in the size specified in Attachment F that will work with the proposed AMI system. 
42. Is there a specification on the endpoint?  Page 30 Attachment E 2.1 asks for the name, model and part number of the end point that would be used on the project.  Will you accept any manufacturer’s product as long as the product meets your specifications?
Answer: There is no requirement for a specific endpoint model as long as the endpoint meets the requirements listed in the RFP.  The City is looking for a wholistic solution.
43. Page 16 – 1.2   Replace designated residential water meters.  The City will provide the meters. Who is the manufacturer of the meters the City will provide?  How does the City plan on supplying the meters?  When will the meter bid be on the street?
Answer: Meters will be bid separately from this AMI project.  Purchase of meters at a contract rate will commence prior to installation of the Start-Up phase of the AMI project. Endpoints will be configurable to both pit and non-pit encoders.
44. RFP Page 16 Section 1.2: “The City will furnish new water meters and encoder registers to the Vendor for installation under this project.”  Will the encoder registers have a plug end on the encoder register signal cable, or will it be a flying lead?
i. If there is a plug end, who is the manufacturer?
ii. How long is the encoder register lead?
Answer: Meters will be bid separately from this RFP and will be selected to dovetail with the AMI vendor’s solution.  Connections need to be compatible with pit or non-pit encoders.  The City currently use screw terminals and potted encoders for dry and wet locations respectively; the City uses pit and non-pit endpoints and encoders. 
45. 8 digit encoders are specified.  Will non-8 digit encoders need to be replaced with new 8 digit encoders?
Answer: Yes. Meters and encoders will be replaced so all encoders will report at least 8 digits.  Meters and encoders to be provided by the City.
46. Is the City requiring any specific AMI technology, or is the City open to any AMI technology as long as it meets the City’s requirements?
Answer: The City is open to any AMI technology that fulfills the City’s requirements stated in the RFP.
47. Will products with ten-year warranty be considered? Is the City looking for battery replaceable units at the endpoint, so just the battery could be swapped out after 10 years?
Answer: Parts are expected to have a 20 year warranty. A 10 year full/10 year limited battery warranty is acceptable as specified in the RFP. 
48. If the warranty requirements are not met, will the bid be thrown out?
Answer: The City is looking for a wholistic solution.  All bids will be considered.
49. Is the City willing to entertain managed solutions- where the vendor hosts the entire solution?
Answer: Vendor hosting of the data, servers as well as Vendor maintenance, and management of the data collectors and network will be considered.  Consider carefully that the vendor must support per City’s needs for data access and expected up-time of the system.  Endpoints and meters will NOT be part of the hosted solution and will remain the City’s direct responsibility. Data collectors, data network, integrations, MDMS and AMI head-end functionality could be part of a managed solution.
50. Do the SUBP MBE and WBE need to be located in Minnesota?
 Answer: Yes.  See Addendum 3 for a list of MBE and WBE vendors in the 11 county area.
51. Have the sites been vetted for available electricity?
Answer: Locations have not been vetted and approval for usage of listed sites is not guaranteed by the City.  The list of sites posted in Addendum 2, sheet 2, and shown in the image of Addendum 1, are POTENTIAL sites the vendor may use.  All vetting will need to be done as part of the project.  Heights of City buildings or poles are not available.
52. Is the City in need of a Project Manager installing meters for 8 years or 20 years?
Answer:
1. This AMI Project Contract with the Vendor is a 3 year duration. 
The AMI head-end will be functional in the first year of the project. 
All data collectors will be functional within 2 years of contract approval.
All 17,000 meters and endpoints, vendor installed, will be functional within 3 years of contract approval.
2. There will be financial consequences for not meeting these goals.
3. The City will install meters/endpoints throughout the 8 year project. 
4. The vendor will provide a minimum 20 year warranty as specified in the RFP.
53. Will the City be responsible for taking back all Vendor removed product meters, registers and endpoints?
Answer: Yes.
54. How long is the pilot phase?
Answer: The Start-Up Phase is described in detail on page 17 of the RFP. The Start-Up Phase will be complete upon the City's written acceptance of the User Acceptance Test.
55. Three phases recognized in the RFP: Pilot, Proof of Concept, and Production.  Can the City clarify the difference or transition from Proof of Concept to Production on page 17 of the RFP?
Answer: The Production phase begins when this 3 year project is complete and the City accepts Vendor support plans for the AMI system. Project Completion is described in Section 6 - Project Completion on page 19. The Production phase includes meter and endpoint installations by the Vendor in the 3 years and City installations over those same 3 years and the next 5 years.
56. Is November 17th a reasonable timeline to submit an RFP?
Answer: Yes. The RFP proposals are due November 17, 2016 (4:00 PM CT).  
57. Can the vendor’s endpoint product be installed outdoors on existing structures? We are asking about situations where the meter/register is installed inside the structure/building and mounting an endpoint to the outside of a residential or commercial structure/building.
Answer: The City anticipates a standard endpoint installation will occur on the outside of houses if necessary to achieve sufficient communication with at least two data collectors. The City is not anticipating endpoint installations separate from the house. 
58. Could you clarify what the City is looking for in the following three lines?   These were added with Addendum 4, tab 3, Endpoints.   
[image: ]
Answer: The City is anticipating that the vendor installers will not be performing any carpentry work. Any installation that requires carpentry work will be completed by the City. Please disregard this carpentry section.
59. Will the City have an outside consulting firm involved in the day to day project management or oversight of any aspect of the deployment?  
Answer: Yes.
60. Can the City provide an account file with either lat/longs or addresses so that a density analysis for the 17,000 proposed installations can be conducted for production estimates?
Answer: The address locations of the 17,000 meters will be established in discovery sessions at the beginning of the project with the selected vendor.  They will be primarily residential installations in close proximity to each other. The service addresses for all of the water services are available at http://www.minneapolismn.gov/finance/procurement/rfp  in Addendum 2. 
61. To meet the SUBP requirements for the project, do second tier subcontractor(s) (those hired by the Prime’s subcontractor) count toward fulfillment or does the MBE/WBE have to be hired directly by the Prime contractor?
Answer: Yes, subs of any tier can count towards the MBE/WBE goals, including suppliers. However, regardless of subcontractor tier, proposer should keep in mind the rules for MBE/WBE eligibility noted in the RFP terms & conditions. Those rules include location (primary place of business must be 'local'); MnUCP certification (includes certification within the needed scope of work); and whether the MBE/WBE is performing a commercially useful function.

62. Addendum 1 indicates a bid bond is not required. Are Performance and Payment Bonds required? On page 28 under Company Financial Information, it states, “Performance and Payment Bond requirements are provided in the RFP Section VIII ‘PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND’.”  We cannot find that section in the RFP document, can you please confirm if these bonds are required and, if so, what the requirements are?
Answer: Please disregard this portion of Attachment C Part 3: “At a minimum, the Vendor shall provide written proof stating that the Vendor is financially responsible and capable of being bonded for an annual amount of $180,000 per bond. Performance and Payment Bond requirements are provided in the RFP Section VIII “PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND”.
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